
October 8, 2025 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

The Regular Meeting of the Board of Regents of the Del Mar College District will convene at 
1 :00 p.m., Tuesday, October 14, 2025, at the Center for Economic Development, 3209 S. Staples, 
Room 106, Corpus Christi, Texas. 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 
QUORUM CALL 
MOMENT OF SILENCE * 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
DMC VISION STATEMENT: Del Mar College empowers our communities to achieve their 
dreams. 

Del Mar College is streaming live audio and video from the official Board of Regents meetings on 
the College's website in real-time, with the exception of portions of the meeting considered as 
"closed session" by statute. 

GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS (Non-Agenda Items)- 3-minute time limit 

• Specific Public Comments will be allowed on agenda items prior to action by the Board.

• General Public Comments may be moved on the agenda at the discretion of the Board Chair
and as an accommodation to those in attendance.

• Pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act, the College is limited in responding to public
comments or inquiries as follows:

1. Provide a statement of specific factual information in response to an

mqmry.
2. Recite existing policy in response to an inquiry.
3. Propose placing the subject of the inquiry on the agenda for a subsequent

meeting.

(Tex. Govt. Code Section § 551.042) 

101 Baldwin Blvd. 

Corpus Christi, TX 78404-3897 

p: 361.698.1203 I t: 361.698.1559 

------------------------ -------------- delmar.edu 



RECOGNITIONS: 

• Veteran Services awarded the VEERA Gold Award by the Texas Veterans Commission 
........................................................................................ Ms. Rita Hernandez 
(III: Cultivate, Goal 2: Optimize the Viking Student Experience) 

COLLEGE PRESIDENT'S REPORT .................................................. Dr. Mark Escamilla 

• CEO Annual Report -Title IX/SB212
(I: Communicate, Goal I: Collaborate across the College and Goal 2: Connect beyond the
College)

• September 10, 2025: TAMUCC State of the University
(I: Communicate, Goal 2: Connect beyond the College)

• September 17, 2025: American GI Forum (AGIF) Dr. Hector P. Garcia Day Luncheon
(I: Communicate, Goal 2: Connect beyond the College)

REGENT'S REPORTS: 

• Discussion related to the San Patricio County Appraisal District Board of Directors' Election

process .................................................................................... Ms. Carol Scott

(I: Communicate, Goal 2: Connect beyond the College)

• 2025 CCATT Annual Conference, Austin, TX 9/11 -9/13, 2025

............................................................. Regents Scott, Adame, Kelly and Babbili 

(1: Communicate, Goal 2: Connect beyond the College) 

• Coastal Bend Legislative Day, Washington DC, 9/14-9/16, 2025 .............. Ms. Carol Scott 

(I: Communicate, Goal 2: Connect beyond the College) 

STAFF REPORTS: 

• Federal Legislative Update ...................................................... Dr. Natalie Villarreal 

(I: Communicate, Goal 2: Connect beyond the College) 

• Nueces County Appraisal District Update .......................................... Mr. Raul Garcia 
(111: Elevate, Goal 2: Maximize resources entrusted to the College) 

• TRIO Student Support Services Grant and TRIO Student Support Services STEM

Grant ................................................................................... Ms. Cheryl Sanders 

(III: Cultivate, Goal 2: Optimize the Viking Student Experience) 

2 



• Brand Health Survey ...................................................................... Mr. Jeff Olsen 

(1: Communicate, Goal 2: Connect beyond the College) 

• Annual Safety and Security Report (Clery) ................................. Ms. Tammy McDonald 
(1: Communicate, Goal I: Collaborate across the College and Goal 2: Connect beyond the 
College) 

• Notice and Summary of Emergency Operations Plan Submission to Texas School Safety

Center ............................................................................ Ms. Tammy McDonald 

(I: Communicate, Goal I: Collaborate across the College and Goal 2: Connect beyond the 
College) 

PENDING BUSINESS: 

Status Report on Requested Information 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Notice to the Public 
The following items are of a routine or administrative nature. The Board of Regents has been 
furnished with background and support material on each item, and/or it has been discussed at a 
previous meeting. All items will be acted upon by one vote without being discussed separately 
unless requested by a Board member or a citizen, in which event the item(s) will immediately be 
withdrawn for individual consideration in their normal sequence after the items not requiring 
separate discussion have been acted upon. The remaining items will be adopted by one vote. 

CONSENT MOTIONS: 

( At this point the Board will vote on all motions not removed for individual consideration.) 

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: 

1. Approval of Minutes:

Called Meeting, Adoption of Budget, August 26, 2025

Called Meeting, Adoption of Tax Rate, August 26, 2025

Called Meeting, August 26, 2025

Regular Board Meeting, September 9, 2025

(1: Communicate, Goal 2: Connect beyond the College)

2. Acceptance of Investments for September 2025

(11: Elevate, Goal 2: Maximize resources entrusted to the College)

Public comments for consent agenda items

3 







President's Report 



Chief Executive Officer Report 

TO: Del Mar College Board of Regents 

FROM: Mark Escamilla, Ph.D., President & Chief Executive Officer 

DATE: October 14, 2025 

RE: Chief Executive Officer Reporting Requirements under Tex. Educ. Code § 51.253(c) 

Under the Texas Education Code (TEC), Section 51.253(c), the institution's Chief Executive Officer is required 

to submit a report at least once during each fall or spring semester to the institution's governing body and 

post on the institution's internet website a report concerning the reports received by employees under the 

TEC, Section 51.252, concerning "sexual harassment," "sexual assault," "dating violence," or "stalking" as 

defined in the TEC, Section 51.251, and any disciplinary actions taken under TEC, Section 51.255. 

For the purposes of complying with the Chief Executive Officer's reporting requirements under TEC, Section 

51.253(c), the attached summary data report1 includes all of the required reporting information to the Del 

Mar College Board of Regents for the time period of September 1, 2024 through August 31, 2025. The 

summary data report is categorized based on the reporting requirements under TEC, Section 51.253(c). The 

reports received may be applicable in multiple reporting categories, and therefore, the summary data in the 

categories may not add up to the totals of other categories. 

The summary data report is also posted on the institution's website as per the public reporting requirements 

under TEC, Section 51.253(c) at: https://delmar.edu/offices/titleix/reporting.html 

Note: Any additional reports received by the Title IX Coordinator that do not meet the required reporting 

criteria in the Texas Education Code have been omitted for the compliance purposes of this specific report. 

1 When identifiable, duplicate reports were consolidated and counted as one report in the summary data, and

confidential employee reporting is noted as a sub-set to the total number of reports received. 

Page 1 of 2 



CEO Summary Data Report 

September 1, 2024 through August 31, 2025 

Texas Education Code, Section 51.252 

Number of reports received under Section 51.252 

Number of confidential reports2 under Section 51.252 

Number of investigations conducted under Section 51.252 

Disposition3 of any disciplinary processes for reports under 

Section 51.252: 

a. Concluded, No Finding of Policy Violation

b. Concluded, with Employee Disciplinary Sanction

c. Concluded, with Student Disciplinary Sanction

d. SUBTOTAL

Number of reports under Section 51.252 for which the 

institution determined not to initiate a disciplinary process 

Texas Education Code, Section 51.255 

Number of reports received that include allegations of an 

employee's failure to report or who submits a false report to 

the institution under Section 51.255(a) 

Any disciplinary action taken, regarding failure to report or 

false reports to the institution under Section 51.255(c): 

a. Employee termination

b. Institutional intent to termination, in lieu of

employee resignation

15 

5 

2 

a.a

b.O

c. 2

d.2

12 

0 

0 

0 

0 

2 "Number of confidential reports" is a sub-set of the total number of reports that were received under Section 51.252,

by a confidential employee or office (e.g., Counseling Center, Student Health Center, Victim Advocate for Students, or 

Student Ombuds). 

3 "Disposition" means "final result under the institution's disciplinary process" as defined in the Texas Higher Education

Coordinating Board's (THECB) rules for TEC, Section 51.259 [See 19 Texas Administrative Code, Section 3.6(3) (2019)]; 

therefore, pending disciplinary processes will not be listed until the final result is rendered. 

Page 2 of 2 



Staff Reports 



Federal Legislative Update 

Dr. Natalie Villarreal 

A VP of External & Government Affairs and Strategic Planning 



Q)
 

+-'
 

co
 

-0
 

a.
 

::::>
 

en
 

en
 

Q)
Q)

>
I.-

■
-

C)
I.!)

 

+-'
 

N
 

0
 

co
 

C
 

N
 

-

0
 

.s:::;
 

�
 

en
 

�
 

I...
 

■
-

0
 

Q)
 

.0
 

C)
(..)

 

Q)
..c

0

+
■
J

 

_J
 

0)
-

�

co
 

�
I.-Q)

 
-0

 
Q)

 
LL

 

(j)
 

!....
 

rn
 

<(
 

+-'
 

CQ)
 

E
 

C!....
 

ro
 

Q)
 

Q)
 

>
 

0
 

s....
 

(9
 

0)
 

s....
 

C
ro

 �
 · -

-
C

::-=
 

CO
 

C
 

>
 

C
 

CO
!....

 a..
•

Q)
 

()
 

+-'
 

u
X

 
·-

w
 

0)
Q)

'+-
Q)

==
 

o
 ro

ro
 

+-'
 

!....
 

C
 

+-'
 

-
+
,■,J

 
Q)

 
Cl)

ro
 

-c
 

-c
z

 
. (J)

 
C

©
 

rn
 

!....
 

�
 

a..
0

 
Q)

 
u

 

>
 

Q)
 

+-'
 

rnu
 

0
 

(j)
 

(j)
 

<(
 

w
 

(.9
 

w
 

_J
 

U
o

 
�

�
 

c
�
 _J
 

w
 

0
 





Dr. DeRionne Pollard 

President & CEO 

American Association of 

Community Colleges 

r:w; AMERICAN
r 
� 

ASSOCIATION OF 

r- COMMUNllY

� COLLEGES 
ADYOCAT,1: • ADVANCE 



Nicholas Kent 

Under Secretary of Education 

� U.S. Department of
� Education



Priorities at the Federal Level 

Funding 

Rule Making 

Clean Up 



Advocacy 

Pell Grant 

Minority Serving 

Institutions 

Workforce Development, 

Adult Basic Education and 

Career and Technical 

Education 

,,,,..,.,e&5F�•-��"""= "l"'p:,,,t,- ¥1-3H 
! 2 \r&it 8 4--± 

, _  







-�- . .  

"
1i1lr��i
f ( 

l I� 

JOINT LEGISLATIVE 

AGENDA FOR THE 

119th CONGRESS 

(2025-2026) 

Advancing America's Community Colleges 

COMMUNITY COLLEGE TRUSTEES 



Enrollment 

• Credit Seeking: 6.4 million

• Non-credit Seeking:
4.1 million

Student Information 

• Women: 57.5%
• Men: 42.5%
• Average Age: 27
• First Generation: 32%
• Single Parents: 13%

• Veterans: 4%
• Nonresident Alien: 2%

Degrees and Certificates Awarded (2022-2023) 

• Associate: 800,958
• Bachelor's: 22,104
• Certificates: 628,838

STUDENT DEMOGRAPHICS 

Race and Ethnicity of Students Enrolled for Credit 

• White: 42%
• Hispanic/Latino: 28%

• Black/African American: 12%
• Asian/Pacific Islander/Native Hawaiian: 6%
• Two or more races: 4%
• Other/Unknown: 4%
• Native American/Alaska Native: 1%

AFFORDABILITY 

Attendance Status (Fall 2022) 

• Full-time: 2 million (32.7%)
• Part-time: 4 million (67.3%)

Employment Data 

• Full-time students employed
full-time: 43%

• Full-time students employed
part-time: 30%

• Part-time students employed

full-time: 59%
• Part-time students employed

part-time: 23%

Average Cost of Attendance (2024-2025) Percentage of Students Receiving Aid (2019-2020) 

• Tuition and Fees: $4,050 • Any Aid: 55%
• Housing and Food: $10,390 • Federal Grants: 36%
• Books and Supplies: $1,520 • Federal Loans: 12%
• Transportation and Other Expenses: $4,610 • State Aid: 22%
• Total Cost of Attendance: $20,570 • Institutional Aid: 8%

SOURCES: 

AACC Analysis of 2019-20 National Postsecondary Student Aid Study 
AACC Analysis of Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS). Fall 2023 Enrollment Survey 
AACC Analysis of Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS). Fall 2023 Enrollment by Age Survey 
AACC Membership Database. January 2024 
AACC Analysis of Membership Database & Jacoby, T. The Indispensable Institution: Taking the Measure of Community College Workforce 
Education. 2021 
ACCT Analysis of IPEDS, 12-month Enrollment Component 2022-23 Provisional Data. (https://nces.ed.gov/ipeds/TrendGenerator) 
ACCT Analysis of IPEDS, Undergraduate Enrollment by Degree/certificate Seeking Status and Attendance Status. 2023 
( https:/ /nces.ed.gov/i peds/Su mmary Tables) 
College Board. Trends in College Pricing and Student Aid 2024. https://research.collegeboard.org/media/pdf/Trends-in-College-Pricing-and­
Student-Aid-2024-ADA.pdf 



COMMUNITY COLLEGE FEDERAL 

LEGISLATIVE PRIORITIES 

The American Association of Community Colleges 

(AACC) and the Association of Community College 

Trustees (ACCT) support the following legislative 

priorities for the 119th Congress. 

Federal Pell Grants 

• Substantially increase the maximum Federal Pell

Grant, which serves as the foundation for millions of

financially needy community college students.

• Extend Pell Grant eligibility to high-quality,

workforce-oriented short-term programs offered by 

community colleges.

• Increase lifetime Pell Grant eligibility to 14

semesters or its full-time equivalent.

• Help safeguard the Pell Grant program's future

financial stability by ensuring Pell Grant reserve

funds remain dedicated to the Pell Grant program.

Funding for Federal Student Financial Aid 

and Institutional Aid Programs 

• Support federal investments in higher education

by providing funding allocations for domestic

discretionary programs sufficient to support the

multi-faceted community college mission.

• Support the Federal Supplemental Educational

Opportunity Grant (FSEOG) and Federal Work­

Study (FWS) programs, which enhance community

college student enrollment and success.

• Increase funding for vital institutional aid programs,

including the Strengthening Institutions (Title

Ill-A of the HEA), Developing Hispanic-Serving

Institutions, Tribal Colleges and Universities,

Historically Black Colleges and Universities, Asian

American and Native American Pacific Islander

Serving Institutions, and Predominantly Black

Institutions programs.

• Strengthen TRIO, GEAR UP, CCAMPIS,

Postsecondary Student Success Grants, Basic

Needs Grants and other student support programs

that help community colleges meet the needs

of diverse, historically underrepresented, and

economically disadvantaged populations.

Higher Education Act (HEA) Reauthorization 

Student Financing, Access, and Affordability 

• Ensure that loan subsidies are targeted on those

borrowers who need them the most; focus

repayment flexibility on students who borrow

smaller amounts; tie borrowing limits to enrollment

intensity; give institutions more authority to limit

borrowing in defined circumstances.



• Reform the allocation formulas for the FSEOG and
FWS programs to distribute funds based on current
student and family finances rather than previous
allocations; extend authority to use these funds for
emergency aid.

• Create a federal-state partnership that provides
federal support to states that make community
college tuition-free for all students.

• Restore full Title IV student eligibility for
community college students who lack a high
school diploma or its equivalent but can benefit
from postsecondary education.

Institutional Accountability and Promoting 
Student Success 

• Create a federal student-level data system to
generate accurate, meaningful information on
postsecondary outcomes and earnings, which will
inject great accountability across higher education.

• Establish more accurate measures of community
college success by counting in the graduation rate
students who complete within six years and those
who transfer to other colleges with or without a
credential or degree.

• Oppose risk-sharing proposals because they
penalize institutions with the fewest resources who
serve the neediest students.

, Allow institutions that qualify under multiple MSI 
designations to receive simultaneous funding 
if selected. 

• Support an independent accreditation process
that provides necessary quality assurance for the
federal government and other stakeholders without
limiting autonomy or hindering innovation.

Innovation and Compliance 

• Ensure that Title IX policies enhance student safety
and clarify institutional responsibilities, while
considering the unique features of community
college campuses.

• Encourage quality innovations in higher education,
including competency-based education, dual
enrollment, guided pathways, new credentials, and
other educational advancements.

Target anti-fraud measures on institutions that
have historically abused the Title IV programs, and
strengthen the "90/10" rule, which requires that for­
profit institutions derive at least 10% of their overall
funding from non-Title IV sources.

• Ensure that the Department of Education
effectively implements the FAFSA Simplification
Act and Title IV programs generally without
undue regulatory burdens, while ensuring that the
agency has adequate administrative funding for
this purpose.



Access to Basic Needs Services for Low­
Income Students 

• Streamline access to key public benefits programs

for eligible community college students,
including SNAP, WIC, Medicaid, TANF, and public

housing programs.

• Create new federal support for campus and
community-based programs that provide food,

housing, transportation, child care, technology

access, medical care, including mental health
services, and other basic needs services to 
community college students.

• Alter the CCAMPIS program to provide grant

funding of adequate size to maintain high-quality,
broadly available campus childcare; allow for a

portion of funding to be used for facilities upgrades.

Workforce Development, Adult Basic 
Education and Career and Technical Education 

• Authorize and substantially increase funding for the

Strengthening Community College Training Grants

program as a means of addressing severe skilled 
workers shortages in key industries.

• Increase funding for state grants under the 

Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education

Act (CTE). the occupational and adult basic

education programs in the Workforce Innovation

and Opportunity Act (WIOA). the Advanced

Technological Education (ATE) and other

programs at the National Science Foundation to

include community colleges in efforts to bolster 

America's competitiveness in science, technology,

engineering, and mathematics (STEM) fields.

• Enhance the Workforce Investment and

Opportunity Act to bolster the role of community
colleges in workforce development by ensuring

community colleges are part of the leadership

apparatus, prioritizing credential attainment, and

streamlining reporting requirements.

• Support a National Apprenticeship Act that

recognizes the role of community colleges and the

value of multiple types of apprenticeships.

• Foster community development by providing

adequate federal resources for essential programs
addressing education, health care, renewable

energy, and workforce development needs across
the country, including in rural communities.

Higher Education Tax Benefits for Low­
Income Students 

• End the taxation of Pell Grants, which

disproportionately and unfairly impacts low-income

community college students

• Alter the eligibility criteria for the American

Opportunity Tax Credit (AOTC) so that low-income

community college students, particularly Pell Grant

recipients, qualify for the credit



• Improve the Lifetime Learning Credit for business
and community college students by covering
100% of the first $2,000 of expenses for technical
education programs.

DREAM Act and Immigration Policy 

• Pass comprehensive immigration reform that
creates a path to citizenship for qualifying
undocumented students and that allows them to
be eligible for federal student aid.

• Provide a pathway for students with Temporary
Worker Visas and their families to stay in the U.S.
while enrolled in higher education, providing a
pathway for these students to obtain other visas for
high-need skill areas in HlB or HlC areas.

Veterans 

• Ensure that active-duty personnel and their
dependents can fully participate in community
college educational programs.

• Enact reforms that help veterans choose the
educational program that best suits their needs and
prevents their exploitation.

International Education Programs 

• Increase opportunities for community college
students to study abroad and encourage, through
outreach as well as improvement of Fl student visa
approval access, international students to enroll in 
community colleges.

• Increase funding for the HEA Title VI and Fulbright
Hays undergraduate international education
programs, which are vital to national security and
economic productivity.

Infrastructure 

• Invest in upgrading and modernizing the
community college facility infrastructure, including
physical plant and equipment, as they are integral
to the nation's economic vitality.

• Ensure that community colleges and their students
can access technology equipment, including high­
speed broadband internet services.

















































































































































































Summary of Emergency Operations Plan and Notice of 

Submission to Texas School Safety Center 

Ms. Tammy McDonald 

VP of Administration and Human Resources 



























































CONSENT MOTIONS: 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Notice to the Public 

(At this point the Board will vote on all motions not removed for individual consideration.) 

ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION: 

1. Approval of Minutes:
Called Meeting, Budget Workshop, July 29, 2025
Regular Board Meeting, August 12, 2025
(I: Communicate, Goal 2: Connect beyond the College)

2. Acceptance of Investments for August 2025
(II: Elevate, Goal 2: Maximize resources entrusted to the College)

3. Acceptance of Financials for July 2025
(II: Elevate, Goal 2: Maximize resources entrusted to the College)

Regent Loeb made a motion to adopt the Consent Agenda. 

Regent Crull seconded the motion. There was no further 

discussion from the Board. There were no public comments. A 

vote was taken by show of hands, and the motion carried 

unanimously 8-0, amongst Regents present, with Regents Scott, 

Averyt, Adame, Babbili, Crull, Garza., Kelly, and Loeb in 

favor. 

REGULAR AGENDA 

At 2:56 p.m., the Chair announced that the Board was going into Closed Session pursuant 

to: 

5. CLOSED SESSION pursuant to:

A. TEX. GOV'T CODE§ 551.071: (Consultation with legal counsel), regarding pending or
contemplated litigation, or a settlement offer, with possible discussion and action in
open session; and/or the seeking of legal advice from counsel on pending legal or

contemplated matters or claims, with possible discussion and action in open session; and,

B. TEX. GOV'T CODE§ 551.074(a)(l): (Personnel matters), regarding the appointment,
employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer

or employee.

The Board of Regents reconvened in Open Session at 4:07 p.m. with no action taken. 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
September 9, 2025 

Page 7 


























































































































































	Agenda 
	President's Report 
	Staff Reports
	Federal Legislative Update 
	TRIO Student Support Services Grant & STEM Grant 
	Brand Health Survey 
	Annual Saftey and Security Report (Clery) 
	Summary of Emergency Operations Plan and Notice of Submission to Texas School Safety Center 

	Pending List 
	Consent Agenda Item 1 
	Consent Agenda Item 2 
	Regular Agenda Item 3 
	Regular Agenda Item 4 
	Regular Agenda Item 5 
	Regular Agenda Item 6 



